
YOUR community. YOUR voice. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Knighton Community 
Meeting  

 
 

DATE:  Monday, 9 March 2015 
TIME:  6:30 pm 
PLACE: The Lancaster School and Specialist 

Sports College,  
Drama Studio, Knighton Lane East, 
Leicester LE2 6FU. 

 

To access the Drama Studio, turn into the college driveway and then turn left at the 
first car park. . Head towards the gates at the bottom of the car park and then go 
through a fire exit door on the right. This leads into the Drama Studio.  

 

Ward Councillors 
 
Councillor Ross Grant 
Councillor Inderjit Gugnani 
Councillor Dr Lynn Moore 
 

Please note,  
there will be no Information Fair at this meeting 



 

 

Conduct Guidance 
 
The behaviour of people at ward community meetings is important to the success of 
the meeting. Everyone attending today’s meeting is kindly asked to comply with the 
following arrangements:  
 

• Respect the views of others  
• Keep to the Agenda 
• One person speaks at a time 
• Keep disruption to the minimum (mobile phones on silent) and no side 

discussions 
 
If anyone does not comply with the guidance, they may be warned that they may be 
asked to leave the meeting. 

 
 
Making Meetings Accessible to All 
  
Access – Meetings are held in a variety of community venues. We will only hold 
meetings in venues where there is suitable access for wheelchairs. If you have any 
concerns about accessing a venue by wheelchair, please contact the Democratic 
Support Officer on the number given below.  If you feel you may not be able to hear 
what’s being discussed at a meeting please contact the Democratic Support Officer 
on the number below. 
 
Braille / Audio tape / Translation 
If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer (production times 
will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Social Media - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to 
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of 
means, including social media. If you wish to film proceedings at a meeting please 
let us know as far in advance as you can so that it can be considered by the Chair of 
the meeting who has the responsibility to ensure that the key principles set out below 
are adhered to at the meeting. 
 
Key Principles.  In recording or reporting on proceedings you are asked: 

� to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
� to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted ; 
� where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the 

meeting; 
� where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are 

aware that they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 



 

1. INTRODUCTIONS  
 

 

 The Chair will introduce those present and make any necessary 
announcements. 
 
The Chair and any other Councillors who are present will make any 
declarations as required by the Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. ACTION LOG  
 

Appendix A 

 Attached for information and discussion.  
 

4. NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING UPDATE  
 

 

 There will be an update from a member of the Neighbourhood Planning Group,  
 

5. HISTORIC VILLAGES - KNIGHTON  
 

 

 Councillor Dr Moore will provide a briefing on Knighton as a historic village.  
 

6. CITY WARDEN UPDATE  
 

 

 The City Warden will give an update on issues in Knighton Ward.  
 

7. POLICE ISSUES UPDATE  
 

 

 Officers from Leicestershire Police will be at the meeting to provide an update 
on police issues in Knighton Ward.  
 

8. WARD COMMUNITY BUDGET  
 

Appendix B 

 Councillors are reminded that under the Council’s Code of Conduct they 
should declare any interest they may have in budget applications 
 
a) An update will be given on the Ward Community budget; and 

 
b) A list of grant applications submitted for consideration at this meeting is 

attached.   
 
 

9. WARD FUND APPLICANT UPDATE  
 

 

 Applicants who have previously received funding from the community meeting 
budget will be invited to provide feedback on their projects.  
 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Help us to make improvements! 
 
Please help us to improve Community Meetings by filling in an 
Evaluation sheet to let us know what you thought of the meeting. Thank 
you. 
 

 
 

For further information, please contact 
  
Mike Broad 
Phone Number: 0116 454 1836 
Email Address: michael.broad@leicester.gov.uk  
 
Or 
 
Julie Harget 
Phone Number: 0116 454 6357 
Email Address: julie.harget@leicester.gov.uk  
 
 
www.leicester.gov.uk/communitymeetings 

 
 
 



1 
 

KNIGHTON COMMUNITY MEETING 

 

MONDAY, 15 DECEMBER 2014 

 

Held at: Overdale Junior School, Eastcourt Road, Leicester   

 
ACTION LOG 

 
Present: 

Councillor Grant (Chair) 
Councillor Gugnani 
Councillor Dr Moore 

 

NO. ITEM ACTION REQUESTED AT MEETING 

22. INTRODUCTIONS  Everyone welcomed and introductions given. 

No interests were declared.  

23. APOLOGIES FOR 

ABSENCE  

All to note apologies for absence from Mr and Mrs 
Jones, Malcolm Shaw (Knighton Society), and 
Hamish Whitehead.  

24. ACTION LOG  Ward Councillors to write to officers to find out why, 
despite reminders, advice still had not been received 
on how the money allocated for dealing with flooding 
issues could best be used, (item 14, “Update on 
Flooding Issues”, referred).  

25. POLICE ISSUES 

UPDATE  

All to note that:- 

• Burglary was the main issue being reported in the 
Ward.  Historically, incidents increased over the 
Christmas / New Year period, but the number 
already had been increasing for several weeks, 
with seven being recorded since 29 November.  
Extra patrols were being done and were visiting 
specific areas. 

• The Police service was going through a 
transformation, due to Home Office cuts.  As a 
result, there would be changers in how the Police 
responded to incidents.  For example, reports 
would be “triaged” and there was likely to be more 
contact by telephone. 

• Contact could be made with the Police via social 
media.  For example, if someone “tweeted”, the 
Police would “tweet” back. 

• Thefts reported from unattended motor vehicles 
had reduced by approximately 40%.  

Appendix A

1



2 
 

26. CITY WARDEN  All to note the update attached. 

Residents invited to pass concerns about rubbish on 
private land to the City Warden team. 

All to note that:- 

• Information on dogs fouling in the area is being 
sought. 

• CCTV operators have been asked to look out for 
graffiti in the area in the hope that those doing it 
can be caught. 

• Checks are made to ensure that skips on roads 
are well lit, as well as having the required licence 
and insurance.  

27. WARD COMMUNITY 

BUDGET  

An application for a grant of £2,000 to be considered 
at the next meeting, as it was received too late for 
consideration at this meeting. 

All to note that:- 

o The following grants have been supported under 
the Council’s fast track procedure: 

� Start-up Costs (1244) – Grant of £208 to 
Knighton Wildlife Group  

� Open House Event (5061) – Grant of £500 to 
Sue Ryan 

o Approximately £1,800 of the Ward’s Community 
Budget for 2014/15 was uncommitted. 

o As Council elections were to be held in May 2015, 
none of the Ward’s Community Budget could be 
carried over to the 2015/16 financial year. 

o A grant had been given towards the Francis 
Street and Allandale Road Traders’ Association’s 
Christmas Market.  This had been very 
successful.  Various actions were being taken to 
reduce reliance on grants in the future. 

o A grant had been given towards a project to help 
disadvantaged people understand the benefit of 
growing food and help them develop life skills.  
An allotment on Queens Road would be used.  
Lottery funding also was being applied for. 
Volunteers would be sought when this was in 
place. 

o The new walkway enclosure at Stoneygate 
Baptist Church towards which a grant had been 
given had been provided and the church’s 

2



3 
 

facilities were being widely used by the 
community. 

o The floor at Holbrook Hall, towards which a grant 
had been given, had been successfully replaced 
and events were being held there.  

28. INFORMATION 

UPDATE  

a) The Get Growing Campaign 

Residents invited to apply for grants of £1,000 for 
projects within the Ward encouraging people to grow 
their own food. 

Applications for these grants to be made in the same 
way as applications for Ward Community Grants. 

 

b) Boundary Changes 

All to note that:- 

• A boundary review for all electoral wards in the 
city had been undertaken, in order to equalise 
voter numbers in each ward. 

• Some properties in Stoneygate Road and 
Holmfield Road would move in to a different ward, 
but a small number of roads to the west of 
Welford Road would move in to this ward.  As a 
result, the ward would stay about the same size 
as currently. 

• These changes would come in to force from the 
elections in May 2015.  

29. LOCAL PLAN  All to note that:- 

• The Council is required to produce a Local Plan, 
setting out the planning strategy for the city for 
the next 15 years. 

• The current consultation was on the first stage of 
the preparation of the Plan.  There would be other 
stages of consultation as preparation of the Plan 
progressed. 

• One difficult issue was how development could be 
funded in the current economic situation.  For 
example, the amount of developer contribution 
that could be requested was likely to be limited. 

• Discussions had been held with transport 
providers regarding the extension of bus services 
in order to encourage the city’s night-time 
economy. 

• The Council was the sixth best authority for 

3



4 
 

housing delivery.  Much of this was through small-
scale windfall sites.  Student accommodation was 
included, due to the strength of the universities in 
the city. 

• No allocation of student accommodation existed, 
but under the current Supplementary Planning 
Document developers had to justify why more 
was needed.   

• Over the last six years, approximately 360 units of 
accommodation had been provided, mostly in the 
city centre. 

• The current consultation would close on 31 
January 2015.  Responses could be made 
through the on-line consultation system, or by e-
mailing or writing to the Council’s Planning Policy 
team.  Comments could be very general, or could 
focus on particular areas. 

• The Local Plan needed to be adopted by October 
2016.  It would then be used for the 15 years 
following adoption. 

A standing item on the development of the Local Plan 
to be included in the agenda of each Knighton 
Community Meeting.  

30. NEIGHBOURHOOD 

PLANNING  

All to note that:- 

• The development of Neighbourhood Plans is 
optional. 

• They reflect the needs of a particular 
neighbourhood.  For example, preventing large 
developments or improving infrastructure. 

• There are five steps in preparing a 
Neighbourhood Plan 

o The Plan is written by the Council, but led by 
the community 

o Establish local priorities 

o Independent checking and examination of the 
Plan 

o The holding of a community referendum on the 
adoption of the Plan 

o Consideration of the Neighbourhood Plan 
against the Local Plan 

• The Council was legally required to support the 
group preparing the Neighbourhood Plan, but 

4



5 
 

ownership remained with the community. 

• The community group leading the development of 
the Plan needed to be a large group of 
representatives of those living and working in that 
community.  The Council would work with this 
group to form a Neighbourhood Forum. 

• Over 50% of those entitled to vote in the 
community referendum needed to approve the 
Plan in order for it to be adopted. 

• Grants of up to approximately £7,000 were 
available to meet expenses incurred in the steps 
outlined above, (for example, room hire or other 
consultation expenses).   

• The deadline for applications for funding under 
the current round was March 2015.  It was 
recommended that a group of at least 21 people 
be established to apply for a grant. 

Those interested to contact Michael Broad, 
Neighbourhood Development Manager (Leicester City 
Council) as soon as possible, so that an initial 
meeting can be held in January 2015 to assess 
whether there is sufficient interest in developing a 
Neighbourhood Plan.  Michael Broad to contact those 
on the contact list for Knighton Community Meeting, 
to seek interest in the Plan and arrange a venue for 
the initial meeting.  

31. DATE OF NEXT 

MEETING  

Monday 9 March 2015.  (Venue to be arranged)  

32. ANY OTHER 

BUSINESS  
• Further to the grant to establish a wildlife group in 

Knighton, (see item 27 above), an initial meeting 
of the group would be held on 12 February 2015 
at Knighton Parish Centre.  Further details were 
available from Simon Walter, Community 
Engagement Officer, (Leicester City Council). 

• All to note that residents in Stoneygate Road had 
submitted a petition to the Council asking that 
residents be allowed to park on the front of their 
properties, due to the problems experienced 
following the introduction of parking restrictions 
on Francis Street and Allandale Road.   

Ward Members to ask a Building Conservation 
Officer to visit the site to explain why this could 
not be allowed, even though residents have 
sourced railings with gates that appear to be in 

5



6 
 

keeping with the area.  

33. CLOSE OF 

MEETING  

The meeting closed at 8.14 pm  

6



 

£778

£18,000

£18,778

Bid Name of Project Applicant Date Agreed
Agreed 

Funding

1035 Replace floor in main room Holbrook Hall PCC of Conventional District of St Guthlac 23/06/14 £3,500.00

1055 Big Sunday Lunch Jean Mcleish 23/06/14 £100.00

1046 Northcote road Community Playing out Sally White 23/06/14 £75.72

1056 Replacement Walkway Enclosure Stoneygate Baptist Church 23/06/14 £2,500.00

0021 Allandale Road/Francis Street Community marke
Stoneygate Shops Retailer Forum  (joint 

bid with Stoneygate £2780 each)
23/06/14 £2,679.50

Carried forward from 

2013/14

1014 Artbeat- Clarendon Park Arts Festival Sue King 23/06/14 £612.00

5049
Stoneygate Shoppers Retail Forum Christmas Market - 

Joint Bid Stoneygate

Kevin Urguhart
22/09/14 £3,269.50

1244 Knighton Wildlife group Simon Bennet 28/11/14 £208.00 Fast Tracked

5061

Art House- Joint bid with Castle - Event being held 

13/14/15 June 2015 with 50 local artists across a number 

of local houses, 

Sue Ryan

28/11/14 £500.00 Fast Tracked

£13,444.72

£5,333.28

Bid Name of Project Applicant Date Received
Funding 

Request

2570 South Knighton Flood Defences 
Residents of Carisbrooke Road, Arreton 

Close and Knighton Church Road 
07/03/14 £1,500.00

5063
Artbeat- Joint Bid with Castle- Art Festival 18th - 23rd 

June 2015

Clarendon Park Community Arts Festival 

Committee
27/11/14 £2,000.00

1302 Knighton Thursday Club- Rent and Coach Cost Mavis Mason 30/01/15 £600.00

1325 Coffee Morning/ Drop in Geoff Whittle 06/02/15 £600.00

South Knighton Neighbourhood Planning Group Simon Bennett £150.00

£4,850.00

£483.28

Bid Name of Project Applicant Date Decided
Amount 

Request

0023
The PLAce multi purpose venue - external signage, 

replacement window rilles and dishwasher

Pre-School Learning Alliance - Angela 

Eager

28/02/14 £1,714.00

5001 Aylestone Park Run Alison Robbins 03/04/14 £1,000.00

1159 Knighton Park Running and Athletics Project Wayne Walker 22/09/14 £500.00

5048 STARS Performing Arts School Su Tucker 22/09/14 £880.00

5024 Community Multibed Acupunture Ariane Thompson 03/06/14 £1,000.00

£5,094.00

Balance Remaining

Total Value of Bids Not Supported

Total Value of Bids to be Considered

Knighton Community Meeting Budget 2014-15

Applications Not Supported

Withdrawn Applications 

New Applications to be Considered at the Next Meeting

Balance Remaining if above are approved

Applications Supported

Opening Balance 14/15

Budget Allocation 14/15

Balance Carried forward 13/14

Committed                  

Appendix B

7



8


	Agenda
	3 ACTION LOG
	8 WARD COMMUNITY BUDGET

